

ORDINANCE

**AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 15 ("MOTOR VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC"),
ARTICLE 3 ("PARKING METERS, PARKING PERMITS AND MUNICIPAL ATTENDANT PARKING
LOTS") SECTION 15-3-18 ("PARKING RATES; PARKING METERS, PAY AND DISPLAY MACHINES,
VILLAGE OPERATED PARKING STRUCTURES, PERMIT EXTENDED PASS, VALET AND DAYTIME
ON STREET PERMIT PARKING") OF THE OAK PARK VILLAGE CODE FOR THE PURPOSE
OF AMENDING CERTAIN PARKING RATES AND REQUIREMENTS**

WHEREAS, the Village of Oak Park ("Village") is a home rule unit of government as provided by the provisions of Article VII, Section 6 of the Illinois Constitution of 1970; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Village's home rule authority and Section 11-71-8 of the Illinois Municipal Code, 65 ILCS 5/11-71-8, the Village may charge rates for its provision of parking facilities in the Village and the use thereof; and

WHEREAS, President and Board of Trustees have determined to amend the rates charged by the Village for the use of certain parking facilities as contained in this Ordinance.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Oak Park, Cook County, Illinois, in the exercise of their home rule powers, as follows:

Section 1. Recitals Incorporated. The above recitals are incorporated herein by reference as though fully set forth.

Section 2. Village Code Amended. Chapter 15 ("Motor Vehicles and Traffic"), Article 3 ("Parking Meters, Parking Permits, and Municipal Attendant Parking"), Section 15-3-18 ("Parking Rates; Parking Meters, Pay and Display Machines, Village Operated Parking Structures, Permit Extended Pass, Valet and Daytime On Street Permit Parking") of the Oak Park Village Code is hereby amended by adding the underlined language and deleting the overstricken language to read as follows:

15-3-18: PARKING RATES; PARKING METERS, PAY BY SPACE MACHINES, 15-3-18: PARKING RATES; PARKING METERS, PAY BY SPACE MACHINES, VILLAGE OPERATED PARKING STRUCTURES, PERMIT EXTENDED PASS, VALET AND DAYTIME ON-STREET PERMIT PARKING:

Persons parking vehicles in Village owned and/or operated parking spaces designated by the Village for use by the general public as metered pay by space, Village operated parking structures, permit parking, extended pass parking, valet permit parking in designated areas during designated hours, shall pay a fee to the Village in accordance with the following rate schedule:

*

*

*

*

I. Village operated Surface Parking Lot, Parking Garage and Parking Enclave Permit Parking Rates:

1. Village Operated Surface Parking Lots: Parking in Village operated surface parking lots shall only be permitted in metered parking spaces, by permit, or extended pass in designated parking spaces. Such lots may operate exclusively as metered lots or exclusively as permit parking only lots or may operate with a combination of metered, permit and extended pass parking spaces.

No overnight parking shall be permitted in Village operated surface parking lots without a Village issued overnight parking permit or extended pass.

2. Village Operated Parking Garage Monthly Permit Parking Rates: Parking permits allowing for twenty-four (24) hour parking in the Holley Court and Avenue multilevel parking structures shall be sold for one hundred thirty dollars (\$130.00) per vehicle, per month.

3. Village Operated Multilevel Parking Structure, Parking Lot and Enclave Parking Quarterly Permit Parking Rates: Parking permits allowing for twenty-four (24) hour, daytime and overnight parking in Village-operated multilevel parking structures, permit lots, and permit parking enclaves shall be sold at the following rates:

a. High Demand Area Permit Parking Lots and Enclaves: In Village-operated permit parking lots, and permit parking enclaves located within the high parking demand area as designated in subsection 15-3-18A of this section, rates shall be as follows:

(1) Resident Rates:

(A) Twenty-four (24) hour a day permit parking: Two hundred fifty-five dollars (~~\$250.00~~ \$255.00) per vehicle, per quarter.

(B) Daytime permit parking only: Two hundred twenty-five dollars (~~\$220.00~~ \$225.00) per vehicle, per quarter.

(C) Overnight permit parking only: One hundred seventy-five dollars (~~\$170.00~~ \$175.00) per vehicle, per quarter.

(2) Nonresident Rates:

(A) Twenty-four (24) hour a day permit parking: Three hundred ~~twenty-five~~ thirty dollars (~~\$325.00~~ \$330.00) per vehicle, per quarter.

(B) Daytime permit parking only: Two hundred ~~seventy-five~~ eighty dollars (~~\$275.00~~ \$280.00) per vehicle, per quarter.

(C) Overnight permit parking only: One hundred ninety-five dollars (~~\$190.00~~ \$195.00)

(3) Corporate Rates: Corporate rates shall only apply to a licensed business located in the Village of Oak Park which has made application to the Village and been designated as a corporate account for the purposes of quarterly parking permits and purchases a minimum of five (5) quarterly permits, per quarter.

(A) Twenty-four (24) hour a day permit parking: Two hundred fifty-five (~~\$250.00~~ \$255.00) per vehicle, per quarter.

(B) Daytime permit parking only: Two hundred twenty-five dollars (~~\$220.00~~ \$225.00) per vehicle, per quarter.

(C) Overnight permit parking only: One hundred seventy-five dollars (~~\$170.00~~ \$175.00) per vehicle, per quarter.

b. High Demand Area Multilevel Parking Structures: In Village-operated multilevel parking structures located within the high parking demand area as designated in subsection 15-3-18A of this Section, rates shall be as follows:

(1) Rates:

(A) Twenty-four (24) hour a day permit parking: Two hundred sixty-five dollars (~~\$260.00~~ \$265.00) per vehicle, per quarter.

(B) Daytime permit parking only: Two hundred thirty-five dollars (~~\$230.00~~ \$235.00) per vehicle, per quarter.

(C) Overnight permit parking only: One hundred eighty ~~five~~ five dollars (~~\$180.00~~ \$185.00) per vehicle, per quarter.

c. Permit Parking Lots and Enclaves Outside High Demand Areas: In all Village-operated permit lots, and permit parking enclaves located outside the high demand parking area designated in subsection 15-3-18A of this Section, the rates shall be as follows:

(1) Resident Rates:

(A) Twenty-four (24) hour a day permit parking: Two hundred ~~fifteen~~ twenty dollars (~~\$215.00~~ \$220.00) per vehicle, per quarter.

(B) Daytime permit parking only: One hundred eighty-five dollars (~~\$180.00~~ \$185.00) per vehicle, per quarter.

(C) Overnight permit parking only: One hundred forty-five ~~fifty~~ dollars (~~\$145.00~~ \$150.00) per vehicle, per quarter.

(2) Nonresident Rates:

(A) Twenty-four (24) hour a day permit parking: Two hundred ~~seventy-five~~ eighty dollars (~~\$275.00~~ \$280.00) per vehicle, per quarter.

(B) Daytime permit parking only: Two hundred thirty-five dollars (~~\$230.00~~ \$235.00) per vehicle, per quarter.

(C) Overnight permit parking only: One hundred ~~eighty-five~~ ninety dollars (~~\$185.00~~ \$190.00) per vehicle, per quarter.

(3) Corporate Rates: Corporate rates shall only apply to a licensed business located in the Village of Oak Park which has made application to the Village and been designated as a corporate account for the purposes of quarterly parking permits and purchases a minimum of five (5) quarterly permits, per quarter.

(A) Twenty-four (24) hour a day permit parking: Two hundred ~~fifteen~~ twenty (~~\$215.00~~ \$220.00) per vehicle, per quarter.

(B) Daytime permit parking only: One hundred eighty-five dollars (~~\$180.00~~ \$185.00) per vehicle, per quarter.

(C) Overnight permit parking only: One hundred ~~forty-five~~ fifty dollars (~~\$145.00~~ \$150.00) per vehicle, per quarter.

d. Multilevel Parking Structures Outside High Demand Area: In all Village-operated multilevel parking structures located outside the high demand parking area set forth in subsection 15-3-18A of this Section, the rates shall be as follows:

(1) Resident Rates:

(A) Twenty-four (24) hour a day permit parking: Two hundred ~~twenty-five~~ thirty dollars (~~\$225.00~~ \$230.00) per vehicle, per quarter.

(B) Daytime permit parking only: One hundred ninety-five dollars (~~\$190.00~~ \$195.00) per vehicle, per quarter.

(C) Overnight permit parking only: One hundred ~~fifty-five~~ sixty dollars (~~\$155.00~~ \$160.00) per vehicle, per quarter.

(2) Nonresident Rates:

(A) Twenty-four (24) hour a day permit parking: Two hundred ~~eighty-five~~ ninety dollars (~~\$285.00~~ \$290.00) per vehicle, per quarter.

(B) Daytime permit parking only: Two hundred forty-five dollars (~~\$240.00~~ \$245.00) per vehicle, per quarter.

(C) Overnight permit parking only: ~~One hundred ninety-five~~ Two hundred dollars (~~\$195.00~~ \$200.00)

(3) Corporate Rates: Corporate rates shall only apply to a licensed business located in the Village of Oak Park which has made application to the Village and been designated as a corporate account for the purposes of quarterly parking permits and purchases a minimum of five (5) quarterly permits, per quarter.

(A) Twenty-four (24) hour a day permit parking: Two hundred ~~twenty-five~~ thirty dollars (~~\$225.00~~ \$230.00) per vehicle, per quarter.

(B) Daytime permit parking only: One hundred ninety-five dollars (~~\$190.00~~ \$195.00) per vehicle, per quarter.

(C) Overnight permit parking only: One hundred ~~fifty-five~~ sixty dollars (~~\$155.00~~ \$160.00) per vehicle, per quarter.

e. Commuter Areas: Commuter lot permit fees for commuter permit Parking in areas defined in subsection 15-3-18C of this Section.

(1) Resident Rates:

(A) Twenty-four (24) hour a day permit parking: Two hundred ~~twenty-five~~ dollars (~~\$220.00~~ \$225.00) per vehicle, per quarter.

(B) Daytime permit parking only: Two hundred ~~ten~~ fifteen dollars (~~\$210.00~~ \$215.00) per vehicle, per quarter.

(C) Overnight permit parking only: One hundred ~~forty-five~~ fifty dollars (~~\$145.00~~ \$150.00) per vehicle, per quarter.

(2) Nonresident Rates:

(A) Twenty-four (24) hour a day permit parking: Two hundred ~~eighty-five~~ eighty-five dollars (~~\$280.00~~ \$285.00) per vehicle, per quarter.

(B) Daytime permit parking only: Two hundred ~~sixty-five~~ seventy dollars (~~\$265.00~~ \$270.00) per vehicle, per quarter.

(C) Overnight permit parking only: One hundred ~~eighty-five~~ ninety dollars (~~\$185.00~~ \$190.00) per vehicle, per quarter.

(3) Corporate Rates: Corporate rates shall only apply to a licensed business located in the Village of Oak Park which has made application to the Village and been designated as a corporate account for the purposes of quarterly parking permits and purchases a minimum of five (5) quarterly permits, per quarter.

(A) Twenty-four (24) hour a day permit parking: Two hundred ~~twenty-five~~ twenty-five dollars (~~\$220.00~~ \$225.00) per vehicle, per quarter.

(B) Daytime permit parking only: Two hundred ~~ten~~ fifteen dollars (~~\$210.00~~ \$215.00) per vehicle, per quarter.

(C) Overnight permit parking only: One hundred ~~forty-five~~ fifty dollars (~~\$145.00~~ \$150.00) per vehicle, per quarter.

J. Daytime on Street Permit Parking Fee: Permit fees for all daytime on-street parking permits, other than parking permits for the disabled, issued for all daytime on-street permit parking area authorized by ordinance of the President of the Board of Trustees shall be as follows:

* * * *

Resident Permits: ~~Sixty-five~~ Seventy dollars (~~\$65.00~~ \$70.00) per year

* * * *

Employee permits where authorized by ordinance: One hundred ~~fifteen~~ twenty dollars (~~\$115.00~~ \$120.00) per year.

* * * *

K. On Street Overnight Permit Parking Fee in R-7 zoned Districts:

1. One hundred thirty-five dollars (~~\$130.00~~ \$135.00) per quarter for “high demand areas,” defined, for purposes of this subsection 15-3-18K, as parking zones established by the Village Board that are more than eighty percent (80%) full for four (4) consecutive quarters.

2. One hundred twenty-five dollars (~~\$120.00~~ \$125.00) per quarter for “medium demand areas,” defined for purposes of this subsection 15-3-18K as parking zones established by the Village Board that are between twenty percent (20%) and eighty percent (80%) full for four (4) consecutive quarters.

3. One hundred ~~ten~~ fifteen dollars (~~\$110.00~~ \$115.00) per quarter for “low demand areas,” defined, for purposes of this subsection 15-3-18K, as parking zones established by the Village Board that are less than twenty percent (20%) full for four (4) consecutive quarters.

Any conflict between the provisions of this subsection and any other ordinance establishing on-street overnight permit parking in R-7 zoned districts within the Village shall be resolved in favor of this subsection.

* * * *

Section 3. Severability and Repeal of Inconsistent Ordinances. If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall be held invalid, the invalidity thereof shall not affect any of the other provisions of this Ordinance. All ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict.

Section 4. Effective Date. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect after its passage, approval and publication as required by law on January 1, 2018.

ADOPTED this ____ day of _____, 2017, pursuant to a roll call vote at follows:

Voting	Aye	Nay	Abstain	Absent
President Abu-Taleb				
Trustee Andrews				
Trustee Boutet				
Trustee Button				
Trustee Moroney				
Trustee Taglia				
Trustee Tucker				

APPROVED this ____ day of _____, 2017.

Anan Abu-Taleb, Village President

ATTEST

Vicki Scaman, Village Clerk

Published in pamphlet form this ____ day of _____, 2017.

Vicki Scaman, Village Clerk